

WSR 22-08-101
PERMANENT RULES
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR
STANDARDS BOARD

[Filed April 5, 2022, 4:35 p.m., effective May 6, 2022]

Effective Date of Rule: Thirty-one days after filing.

Purpose: The proposed WAC language adopts the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under RCW 28A.410.260. The WAC language includes integration and implementation of the CCDEI standards for professional learning and educator preparation programs.

Citation of Rules Affected by this Order: New WAC 181-85-204; and Amending WAC 181-85-033, 181-85-202, 181-85-204, 181-79A-244, 181-82A-210, 181-82A-212, 181-78A-232, and 181-78A-236.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: Chapter 28A.410 RCW.

Adopted under notice filed as WSR 22-05-085 on March 24 [February 15], 2022.

Number of Sections Adopted in Order to Comply with Federal Statute: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0; Federal Rules or Standards: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0; or Recently Enacted State Statutes: New 1, Amended 7, Repealed 0.

Number of Sections Adopted at the Request of a Nongovernmental Entity: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0.

Number of Sections Adopted on the Agency's own Initiative: New 1, Amended 7, Repealed 0.

Number of Sections Adopted in Order to Clarify, Streamline, or Reform Agency Procedures: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0.

Number of Sections Adopted using Negotiated Rule Making: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0; Pilot Rule Making: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0; or Other Alternative Rule Making: New 0, Amended 0, Repealed 0.

Date Adopted: March 24, 2022.

Sophia Keskey
Rules Coordinator

OTS-3613.1

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 22-03-075, filed 1/18/22, effective 2/18/22)

WAC 181-78A-232 Teacher, principal, career and technical education administrator, superintendent, and program administrator—Specific program approval domain standard—Candidate knowledge, skills, and cultural responsiveness. Knowledge, skills, and cultural responsiveness. Providers prepare candidates who demonstrate the knowledge, skills and cultural responsiveness required for the particular certificate and areas of endorsement, which reflect the state's approved standards.

(1) Providers demonstrate effective, culturally responsive pedagogy using multiple instructional methods, formats, and assessments.

(a) Qualified faculty use multiple instructional strategies, pedagogies, and assessments to address candidates' academic language ability levels and cultural and linguistic backgrounds.

(b) Providers create opportunities for faculty members and program personnel to pursue, apply, and practice ongoing professional learning to improve their knowledge, skill, effectiveness, and cultural responsiveness.

(c) Faculty within the program and the unit collaborate among one another, with content specialists, P-12 schools, members of the broader professional community, and diverse members of local communities for continuous program improvement.

(d) Faculty members and program leaders systematically and comprehensively evaluate faculty's effectiveness in teaching and learning, and competence on the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion standards under WAC 181-85-204.

(2) Providers ensure that completers demonstrate the necessary subject matter knowledge for success as educators in schools.

(a) Candidates demonstrate knowledge and competence relative to the standards related to the role adopted by the board. Providers ensure that candidates in teacher preparation programs demonstrate the most recently published InTASC Standards, candidates in principal programs demonstrate the most recently published NELP - Building Level Standards, candidates in superintendent programs demonstrate the most recently published NELP - District Level Standards, candidates in program administrator programs demonstrate the most recently published NELP Building or District Level Standards, candidates in school counselor programs demonstrate the most recently published CACREP standards, candidates in school psychologist programs demonstrate the most recently published NASP standards for graduate preparation of school psychologists, and candidates in career and technical education educator preparation programs demonstrate and document the career and technical education standards approved by the professional educator standards board.

(b) Teacher candidates must take a board approved basic skills assessment prior to program admission. A provider of a teacher preparation program must assure that all candidates entering the program have successfully met the basic skills requirement under chapter 181-01 WAC at the time of admission. The provider must collect and hold evidence of candidates meeting this requirement.

(c) Teacher candidates must take a content knowledge assessment prior to beginning student teaching. The provider must collect and hold evidence of candidates meeting this requirement. Teacher candidates apply content knowledge as reflected in board approved endorsement competencies. Endorsement assessments are not required for teacher candidates in career and technical education business and industry route programs.

(d) Providers ensure that educator candidates complete coursework on issues of abuse and emotional or behavioral distress in students under RCW 28A.410.035 and WAC 181-79A-200.

(e) Under RCW 28A.410.040, a teacher candidate whose only baccalaureate degree is in early childhood education, elementary education, or special education must have completed 30 quarter credits, or the equivalent in semester credits or continuing education credit hours, in one academic field in an endorsement area under WAC 181-82A-202.

(f) Candidates for an initial certificate in a career and technical education residency teacher preparation program must complete a minimum of 45 quarter credits, or the equivalent in semester credits or continuing education credit hours, in the specific career and technical education area for which certification is sought.

(3) Providers ensure that candidates demonstrate pedagogical knowledge and skill relative to the professional standards adopted by the board for the role for which candidates are being prepared.

(a) Candidates demonstrate knowledge and competence relative to the standards related to the role, which were adopted by the board. Providers ensure that candidates in teacher preparation programs demonstrate most recently published InTASC Standards, candidates in principal programs demonstrate most recently published NELP - Building Level Standards, candidates in superintendent programs demonstrate most recently published NELP - District Level Standards, candidates in program administrator programs demonstrate the most recently published NELP Building or District Level Standards, candidates in school counselor programs demonstrate the most recently published CACREP standards, candidates in school psychologist programs demonstrate the most recently published NASP standards for graduate preparation of school psychologists, and candidates in career and technical education educator preparation programs demonstrate and document the career and technical education standards approved by the professional educator standards board.

(b) Faculty and mentors provide regular and ongoing feedback to candidates regarding field based performance that is actionable and leads to improvement in candidates' practice.

(c) Providers demonstrate through structured observation, discussion, surveys, and/or artifacts that program completers effectively apply the professional knowledge, skills, and dispositions that the preparation program was designed to achieve.

(d) Providers may use the edTPA teacher performance assessment as a formative tool as long as notification to candidates is included in all program descriptions under chapter 28A.410 RCW.

(e) Providers of career and technical educator preparation programs provide candidates all necessary guidance to document, demonstrate, and submit for approval the required hours of occupational experience.

(f) In order to ensure that teacher and principal candidates can recognize signs of emotional or behavioral distress in students and appropriately refer students for assistance and support, teacher and principal preparation program providers must incorporate the social emotional standards and benchmarks, and must provide guidance to candidates on related competencies described in RCW 28A.410.270.

(4) Providers ensure that candidates are well prepared to exhibit the knowledge and skills of culturally responsive educators as described in the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion standards under WAC 181-85-204.

(a) Providers ensure that candidates demonstrate knowledge and competence relative to cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion standards under WAC 181-85-204.

(b) Providers offer all candidates meaningful, reflective opportunities to interact with racially and culturally diverse colleagues, faculty, P-12 practitioners, and P-12 students and families.

~~((b))~~ (c) Providers prepare candidates to adapt their practices based on students' prior experiences, cultural knowledge, and frames of reference to make learning encounters more relevant and effective.

~~((e))~~ (d) Providers ensure course work explicitly focuses on cultural responsiveness and integrates components of culturally responsive education within and throughout all courses.

~~((d))~~ (e) Faculty explicitly model equity pedagogy in course work and field experiences in ways that enable candidates to integrate

their own cultural and linguistic backgrounds into classroom activities.

(5) Teacher candidates engage with the since time immemorial curriculum focused on history, culture, and government of American Indian peoples as prescribed in RCW 28B.10.710.

(a) There shall be a one quarter or semester course, or the equivalent in continuing education credit hours, in either Washington state history and government, or Pacific Northwest history and government in the curriculum of all teacher preparation programs.

(b) No person shall be completed from any of said programs without completing said course of study, unless otherwise determined by the Washington professional educator standards board.

(c) Any course in Washington state or Pacific Northwest history and government used to fulfill the requirement of this section shall include information on the culture, history, and government of the American Indian peoples who were the first human inhabitants of the state and the region.

(d) Teacher preparation program providers shall ensure that programs meet the requirements of this section by integrating the curriculum developed and made available free of charge by the office of the superintendent of public instruction into existing programs or courses and may modify that curriculum in order to incorporate elements that have a regionally specific focus.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 22-03-075, § 181-78A-232, filed 1/18/22, effective 2/18/22; WSR 21-20-052, § 181-78A-232, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21; WSR 21-15-084, § 181-78A-232, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21; WSR 21-08-023, § 181-78A-232, filed 3/29/21, effective 4/29/21; WSR 19-24-103, § 181-78A-232, filed 12/4/19, effective 1/4/20. Statutory Authority: Chapters 28A.410 and 28A.413 RCW. WSR 19-15-144, § 181-78A-232, filed 7/24/19, effective 8/24/19.]

OTS-3606.1

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-20-052, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21)

WAC 181-78A-236 Teacher, principal, career and technical education administrator, superintendent, and program administrator—Specific program approval domain standard—Field experience and clinical practice. Field experience and clinical practice. Providers offer field-based learning experiences and formalized clinical practice experiences for candidates to develop and demonstrate the knowledge and skills needed for their role.

(1) Providers establish and maintain field placement practices, relationships, and agreements with all school districts in which candidates are placed for field experiences leading to certification or endorsement under WAC 181-78A-125.

(a) The program provider and school partners cooperatively design, implement, and evaluate field experiences and clinical practices conforming to board standards and requirements for the role.

(b) Clinical practice for teacher candidates in programs approved to offer traditional routes to teacher certification must consist of no less than (~~four hundred fifty~~) 450 hours in a classroom setting, with a qualifying mentor teacher. Clinical practice for teacher candidates in programs approved to offer alternative routes to certification must consist of no less than (~~five hundred forty~~) 540 hours in a classroom setting with a qualifying mentor.

(c) Principal candidates complete an internship for a full school year, consisting of at least (~~five hundred forty~~) 540 hours, half of which must be during school hours when students and/or staff are present. Interning candidates must demonstrate that they have the appropriate, specific skills pursuant to the standards identified in WAC 181-78A-220 and 181-78A-232.

(d) Superintendent candidates must complete an internship of at least (~~three hundred sixty~~) 360 hours. Interning candidates must demonstrate that they have the appropriate, specific skills pursuant to the standards identified in WAC 181-78A-220 and 181-78A-232.

(e) Candidates in career and technical education teacher preparation programs as described in WAC 181-77-031 must complete a student teaching experience of at least (~~four hundred fifty~~) 450 hours. Candidates must demonstrate that they have the appropriate, specific skills pursuant to the standards identified in the career and technical education standards approved by the professional educator standards board.

(f) Candidates in career and technical education administrator and business and industry route programs must complete a practicum of at least (~~sixty~~) 60 hours. Candidates must demonstrate that they have the appropriate, specific skills pursuant to the standards identified in the career and technical education standards approved by the professional educator standards board.

(g) Providers articulate in writing clear entry and exit criteria as well as a process for mitigating concerns during clinical practice for candidates, school leader(s), and the mentor.

(2) Providers ensure that candidates integrate knowledge and skills developed through field and industry experiences with the content of programs' course work.

(a) Providers offer field experiences in which teacher and principal candidates plan, practice, discuss, and reflect upon methods of instruction and differentiation, and all educator candidates demonstrate that they have the appropriate, specific relevant skills pursuant to WAC 181-78A-220 and 181-78A-232 to be effective in the role.

(b) Integrate assignments, assessments, and actionable feedback throughout candidates' field experiences.

(c) Provide faculty supervision, including supervisory visits, on an ongoing basis.

(d) Identify and recruit mentors for candidates who are educational leaders collaboratively with the partner school(s) or district(s).

(e) Ensure that candidates' mentors are fully certificated school personnel and have a minimum of three years of professional experience in the role they are supervising.

(f) Mentors and school leaders are provided with a set of internship expectations and receive, or provide evidence of having received, training and experience mentoring adult learners and culturally responsive teaching and learning.

(g) Effectiveness of mentor preparation and communication are reviewed annually by program faculty.

(3) Providers offer field experiences in accordance with chapter 181-78A WAC and the board approved candidate assessment requirements.

(a) Ensure that educator candidates are placed in settings where they can be evaluated and given actionable feedback, including on the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion standards under WAC 181-85-204.

(b) Ensure that educator candidates are fingerprinted and have completed required character clearance prior to placement in field experience settings.

(4) Providers ensure that candidates participate in field experiences in school settings with students and teachers who differ from themselves in race, ethnicity, home language, socio-economic status or local population density.

(a) Field experiences provide opportunities to work in communities or with student populations with backgrounds dissimilar to the background of the candidate.

(b) Course assignments and discussions offer candidates opportunities to reflect upon interactions with diverse populations and communities in order to integrate professional growth in cultural responsiveness as a habit of practice.

(c) Candidates have opportunities to design, implement and receive feedback on cultural responsiveness in lessons, assignments, and activities.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 21-20-052, § 181-78A-236, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21; WSR 21-08-023, § 181-78A-236, filed 3/29/21, effective 4/29/21; WSR 20-20-091, § 181-78A-236, filed 10/5/20, effective 11/5/20. Statutory Authority: Chapters 28A.410 and 28A.413 RCW. WSR 19-15-144, § 181-78A-236, filed 7/24/19, effective 8/24/19.]

OTS-3607.1

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-15-085, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21)

WAC 181-79A-244 Certificate renewal requirements. Certificate renewal requirements include the following:

(1) **Equity-based school practices.** Applications for renewal dated July 1, 2023, and beyond, for the certificate types and roles as indicated in (a) and (b) of this subsection, must demonstrate completion of professional learning focused on equity based school practices aligned with the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under ~~((RCW 28A.410.260. Until the CCDEI standards are adopted by the board, the professional learning must be aligned to the cultural competency standards published by the board))~~ WAC 181-85-204.

(a) Completion of at least ~~((fifteen))~~ 15 continuing education credit hours of professional learning in equity-based school practices is required for renewal of residency, professional, initial, and continuing teacher and CTE teacher certificates.

(b) Completion of at least ~~((ten))~~ 10 continuing education credit hours of professional learning in equity-based school practices is re-

quired for renewal of residency, professional, initial, and continuing principal, program administrator, superintendent, and CTE director certificates.

(c) Individuals holding at least one valid, expiration dated administrator certificate under (b) of this subsection are only required to meet the equity-based school practices requirement for administrators when renewing or reinstating a teacher certificate under (a) of this subsection.

(d) Holders of a valid National Board Certificate issued by the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS) meet the equity-based school practices requirement by maintaining a valid National Board Certificate.

(e) A professional growth plan with at least one goal aligned to the standards in this subsection meets the equity-based school practices requirement.

(2) **National Professional Standards for Education Leaders.** Applications for renewal dated July 1, 2023, and beyond, for holders of residency, professional, initial, and continuing certificates in the role of principal, program administrator, superintendent and CTE director, must demonstrate completion of (~~ten~~) 10 continuing education credit hours of professional learning focused on the National Policy Board for Educational Administration (NPBEA) Professional Standards for Educational Leaders (PSEL). A professional growth plan with at least one goal aligned to the PSEL standards meets the certificate renewal requirement in this subsection.

(3) **Providers for professional learning in equity-based school practices and National Professional Standards for Education Leaders.** Professional learning under subsections (1) and (2) of this section must be provided by one or more of the following organizations. These organizations may only provide the professional learning for as long as they maintain status as a Washington state approved in-service education agency under chapter 181-85 WAC.

(a) Association of Washington school principals;

(b) Office of the superintendent of public instruction;

(c) Professional educator standards board-approved administrator or teacher preparation program providers;

(d) Washington education association;

(e) Washington state educational service districts; or

(f) Washington state school districts, tribal compact schools, approved charter schools, Washington school for the deaf, Washington school for the blind.

(4) **Government-to-government relationships with federally recognized tribes.**

(a) Applications for renewal dated July 1, 2023, and beyond, for holders of residency, professional, initial, and continuing certificates in the role of principal, program administrator, superintendent and CTE director, must demonstrate completion of five continuing education credit hours of professional learning focused on government-to-government relationships with federally recognized tribes.

(b) Professional learning related to government-to-government relationships with federally recognized tribes must be provided by one or more subject matter experts approved by the governor's office on Indian affairs in collaboration with the tribal leaders congress on education and the office of native education in the office of the superintendent of public instruction.

(c) Completion of a professional growth plan (PGP) may not be used to meet the requirement for professional learning in government-to-government relationships.

(5) **Science, technology, engineering, math (STEM) integration.** Applications for certificate renewal must demonstrate completion of at least (~~fifteen~~) 15 continuing education credit hours, or at least one goal from an annual professional growth plan, emphasizing the integration of science, technology, engineering, and/or mathematics instruction under RCW 28A.410.2212.

(a) This renewal requirement applies to teachers in the following areas: Elementary education; early childhood education; middle level mathematics and science; secondary mathematics; secondary science; the designated sciences; and career and technical education. Specific endorsements in these endorsement areas are as published by the professional educator standards board.

(b) Holders of a valid National Board Certificate issued by the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS) meet this requirement by maintaining a valid National Board Certificate.

(6) **Suicide prevention training requirement.** Renewal of certificates, and issuance of professional certificates, for school counselors, school psychologists, school nurses, and school social workers requires completion of suicide prevention training under RCW 28A.410.226, 43.70.442, and as described in this section.

Approved trainings meeting this suicide prevention training requirement will be as published by the professional educator standards board. The training program must be at least three hours in length. The professional educator standards board will consider these training programs as continuing education credit hours.

(7) **Washington state department of health licenses.**

(a) Holding a valid department of health license as a physical therapist in Washington state is a requirement for renewal of school physical therapist educational staff associate (ESA) certificate.

(b) Holding a valid department of health license as an occupational therapist in Washington state is required for renewal of school occupational therapist ESA certificates.

(c) Holding a valid department of health license as a registered nurse (RN) in Washington state is a requirement for renewal of school nurse ESA certificates.

(8) **National certificates related to educational staff associate roles.**

(a) Holding a valid Board Certified Behavior Analyst (BCBA) certificate from the Behavior Analyst Certification Board (BACB), or other national certificate as approved by the professional educator standards board, is a requirement for renewal of School Behavior Analyst ESA certificates.

(b) Holding a valid Certified Orientation and Mobility Specialist (COMS) Certificate from Academy for Certification of Vision Rehabilitation and Education Professionals (ACVREP), or, a valid National Orientation and Mobility Certification (NOMC) from the National Blindness Professional Certification Board (NBPCB), is a requirement for renewal of school Orientation and Mobility Specialist ESA Certificates.

(9) **Continuing education role requirements.** Except as otherwise required in Title 181 WAC, continuing education for the following roles must relate to the described areas.

(a) CTE teacher. Continuing education credit hours for renewal of CTE teacher certificates must relate to career and technical education

methods, including those described in RCW 28A.700.010 and WAC 181-77A-165, or to the subject matter certified to teach.

(b) CTE director. Continuing education credit hours for renewal of CTE director certificates must relate to career and technical education, or supervisory or managerial subjects.

(c) School counselor. Continuing education credit hours for renewal must relate to:

(i) American School Counseling Association (ASCA) Professional Standards and Competencies; or

(ii) School Counselor Standards published by the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS).

(d) School psychologist. Continuing education credit hours for renewal certificates must relate to the National Association of School Psychologists (NASP) Professional Practices.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 21-15-085, § 181-79A-244, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21.]

OTS-3604.1

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-20-047, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21)

WAC 181-82A-210 Proposal process for a new specialty endorsement in Washington state. Organizations seeking the creation of a new specialty endorsement in Washington state follow a two-phase process including a preproposal and a proposal.

(1) **Preproposal.** The applicants must submit a preproposal declaring an intent to submit a proposal for the creation of a new specialty endorsement in Washington state. The preproposal will address all requirements published by the board including, but not limited to, the following. The preproposal will:

(a) Provide the name of the specialty endorsement;

(b) Identify at least two organizations submitting the proposal for the new specialty endorsement. These organizations must be eligible to serve as in-service education agencies under WAC 181-85-045;

(c) Identify the proposed essential learnings for the specialty endorsement, or describe the plan to develop the essential learnings;

(d) Describe how the specialty endorsement is aligned and responsive to the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under ~~((RCW 28A.410.260. Until the CCDEI standards are adopted by the board, the proposers will describe how the specialty endorsement is aligned and responsive to the cultural competency standards published by the board))~~ WAC 181-85-204; and

(e) Describe the need for the specialty endorsement, demonstrating response to educator, student, and community needs.

(2) **Proposal.** If the preproposal receives approval from the professional educator standards board, the proposers shall submit a proposal. The proposal will address all requirements published by the board including, but not limited to, the following:

(a) Identify any changes to the preproposal information since the preproposal was submitted;

(b) Letter of commitment from at least two organizations interested in seeking approval to offer the specialty endorsement. If the organizations submitting letters of commitment are the same organizations who are submitting the proposal, the proposal must include at least one letter of support from an additional organization;

(c) Pilot. The proposal will include a description of the pilot of essential learnings for the specialty endorsement including, but not limited to:

(i) Report on the diversity of pilot participants;

(ii) Description of how the pilot was aligned and responsive to the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under ((RCW 28A.410.260. Until the CCDEI standards are adopted by the board, the proposers will describe how the pilot was aligned and responsive to the cultural competency standards published by the board)) WAC 181-85-204;

(iii) Approved specialty endorsement providers may consider work completed by an individual in a specialty endorsement pilot towards meeting the requirements for recommendation for a specialty endorsement.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 21-20-047, § 181-82A-210, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21.]

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-20-047, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21)

WAC 181-82A-212 Proposal process for an organization to be approved to offer a specialty endorsement. Organizations seeking approval to offer a specialty endorsement follow a one-phase proposal process.

(1) **Organizational eligibility:**

(a) Organizations eligible to apply for approval as a specialty endorsement program provider include those eligible to serve as an in-service education agency under WAC 181-85-045.

(b) In order to offer a specialty endorsement, providers must maintain status as an approved in-service education agency or professional educator standards board approved educator preparation program provider.

(2) **Proposal process.** The prospective provider will submit a proposal that addresses all requirements published by the board including, but not limited to, the following:

(a) Description of how the organization will determine that a participant has met the requirements for the specialty endorsement, including the essential learnings;

(b) Statement of need for the provider offering the specialty endorsement, demonstrating response to educator, student, and community needs;

(c) Description of strategies and practices the organization will use to recruit and retain participants from historically excluded groups, including participants of color;

(d) Description of how the provider will implement the specialty endorsement offering in a manner aligned and responsive to the cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under ((RCW 28A.410.260. Until the CCDEI standards are adopted by the board, the proposer will describe how the provider will implement the

~~specialty endorsement offering in a manner aligned and responsive to the cultural competency standards published by the board)~~ WAC 181-85-204;

(e) At least two letters of support from education or community-related organizations; and

(f) Organizational capacity to support participants in completing a specialty endorsement.

(3) Reapproval, rescindment, and disapproval.

(a) Specialty endorsement program providers approved under this section must complete a reapproval process every five years per a schedule posted by the professional educator standards board.

(b) The board, upon receipt of a serious complaint from any source, or upon its own initiative prompted by indications of the need for response, may require a provider to complete the reapproval process.

(c) Approved providers that voluntarily rescind their approval shall be permitted to continue to prepare and recommend for a specialty endorsement. Candidates who have been previously admitted to the program, provided that no recommendations for credentials will be accepted later than (~~twelve~~) 12 months following receipt of the formal letter to rescind provider approval. The provider will notify all currently enrolled candidates of the provider's change in status and notify candidates of the (~~twelve-month~~) 12-month timeline to complete requirements for recommendation.

(d) Disapproved specialty endorsement programs may reapply for approval by following the specialty endorsement approval process.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 21-20-047, § 181-82A-212, filed 9/28/21, effective 10/29/21.]

OTS-3605.1

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-15-085, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21)

WAC 181-85-033 Activity-based continuing education credit hours.

(1) **Eligibility period.** Individuals are eligible for the continuing education credit hours described in this section for up to seven years following the completion date of the indicated activity.

(2) Professional growth team.

(a) A professional growth team for the purpose of certificate renewal means a team comprised of the individual renewing the certificate and a minimum of one colleague, who holds a valid Washington state educator certificate under Title 181 WAC, or paraeducator certificate under Title 179 WAC, chosen by the individual.

(b) For consultation and collaboration, members of a professional growth team, excluding the candidate, are eligible for the equivalent of three continuing education credit hours. The team member may not receive more than the equivalent of six continuing education credit hours, as defined by this section, during the period beginning July 1st of one year and ending June 30th of the following year.

(3) **School accreditation site visit team.** A person holding a valid educational certificate under RCW 28A.410.010 is eligible for the

equivalent of (~~ten~~) 10 continuing education credit hours for serving on a school accreditation site visit team. The person may not receive more than the equivalent of (~~twenty~~) 20 continuing education credit hours during a calendar year period.

(4) **Mentors and field experience supervisors.** Individuals officially designated as a mentor or field experience supervisor by a PESB approved educator preparation program, college or university, school district, educational service district, approved private school, tribal compact school, approved charter school, a state agency providing educational services to students, or the superintendent of public instruction, who hold a valid educational certificate under RCW 28A.410.010, are eligible for the equivalent of (~~thirty~~) 30 continuing education credit hours for service. The service must be as a mentor or field experience supervisor for teachers, administrators, educational staff associates, paraeducators, or interns or candidates in these roles. The individual may not receive more than the equivalent of (~~thirty~~) 30 continuing education credit hours under this subsection during a school year period.

(5) **National board certification from the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS):**

(a) Individuals who submitted at least one component of an initial NBPTS national board certification process in 2017 or earlier, and who hold a valid educational certificate under RCW 28A.410.010, are eligible for the equivalent of (~~forty-five~~) 45 continuing education credit hours for submission of a complete portfolio of four components of the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards certification process. Completion of a national board certification process shall be defined as published by the professional educator standards board. Upon achieving national board certification, the individual is eligible for the equivalent of an additional (~~forty-five~~) 45 continuing education credit hours for a total of (~~ninety~~) 90 continuing education credit hours per national board certificate. Beginning January 1, 2022, all individuals submitting complete components as part of an initial NBPTS national board certification process are eligible for continuing education credit hours as described in (b) of this subsection.

(b) Individuals who first submitted a component of an initial NBPTS national board certification process in 2018 or later, and who hold a valid educational certificate under RCW 28A.410.010, are eligible for the equivalent of (~~fifty~~) 50 continuing education credit hours per submission of a complete national board component, for a total of (~~two-hundred~~) 200 continuing education credit hours per submission of a complete national board certification portfolio. Completion of a national board component shall be defined as published by the professional educator standards board.

(c) Individuals who submit a complete NBPTS national board renewal portfolio in 2018 or later, and who hold a valid educational certificate under RCW 28A.410.010, are eligible for the equivalent of (~~two-hundred~~) 200 continuing education credit hours. Completion of a national board renewal portfolio shall be defined as published by the professional educator standards board.

(d) Individuals who submit a complete NBPTS national board maintenance of certification portfolio, for a national board certificate with a five-year validity period, and who hold a valid educational certificate under RCW 28A.410.010, are eligible for the equivalent of (~~one-hundred~~) 100 continuing education credit hours. Completion of a

national board maintenance of certification portfolio shall be defined as published by the professional educator standards board.

(6) **External assessment for professional certification.** Teachers who achieve the professional certification through the external assessment under WAC 181-79A-206 are eligible for the equivalent of ~~((one hundred fifty))~~ 150 continuing education credit hours.

(7) **First peoples' language, culture, and oral tribal traditions.** In-service training or continuing education in first peoples' language, culture, and oral tribal traditions provided by a sovereign tribal government participating in the Washington state first peoples' language, culture, and oral tribal traditions teacher certification program authorized under RCW 28A.410.045 shall be considered approved in-service training or approved continuing education under this section.

(8) **Scorers for the Washington teacher performance assessment.** Individuals who serve as scorers for the Washington teacher performance assessment are eligible for the equivalent of ~~((ten))~~ 10 continuing education credit hours for each four assessments scored. However, an individual may not receive more than the equivalent of ~~((twenty))~~ 20 continuing education credit hours during a calendar year period. Additionally, individuals who receive initial training as scorers for the Washington teacher performance assessment are eligible for the equivalent of ~~((ten))~~ 10 continuing education credit hours.

(9) **Scorers for the Washington ProTeach Portfolio assessment.** Individuals who serve as scorers for the Washington ProTeach Portfolio assessment are eligible for the equivalent of ~~((ten))~~ 10 continuing education credit hours for completing one full scoring session during a calendar year. An individual may not receive more than the equivalent of ~~((twenty))~~ 20 continuing education credit hours during a calendar year period. Individuals who receive initial training as scorers for the Washington ProTeach Portfolio assessment are eligible for the equivalent of ~~((ten))~~ 10 additional continuing education credit hours. Continuing education credit hours under this subsection are available through December 31, 2027.

(10) **Professional growth plans.**

(a) Educator individualized professional growth plan means the document which identifies the formalized learning opportunities and professional development activities that relate to the specific competencies, knowledge, skills and experiences needed to meet one or more of the following:

(i) Professional role standards under WAC 181-85-203, or paraeducator standards of practice under chapter 179-07 WAC;

(ii) Cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under ~~((RCW 28A.410.260. Until the CCDEI standards are adopted by the board, the professional growth plan must be aligned to the cultural competency standards published by the board))~~ WAC 181-85-204; or

(iii) Social emotional learning standards, benchmarks, and indicators under RCW 28A.410.270.

(b) Only one professional growth plan may be completed each year. Professional growth plans will be completed during the period beginning July 1st of one year and ending June 30th of the following year. Completion of the professional growth plan will include review by the professional growth team, as defined in subsection (2) of this section.

(c) Individuals may apply their focused evaluation professional growth activities from the evaluation system towards the professional growth plan for certificate renewal under RCW 28A.405.100 (12)(c)(vi).

(d) Until June 30, 2018, individuals who complete the requirements of the annual professional growth plan are eligible for (~~thirty~~) 30 continuing education credit hours. Beginning July 1, 2018, individuals who complete an annual professional growth plan are eligible for (~~twenty-five~~) 25 continuing education credit hours.

(e) For educators holding multiple certificates as described in Title 179 or 181 WAC, a professional growth plan for teacher, administrator, education staff associate, or paraeducator shall meet the requirements of a professional growth plan for all certificates held by an individual.

(11) Paraeducator certificates.

(a) Individuals who complete the paraeducator fundamental course of study as described in chapter 179-09 WAC are eligible for the number of continuing education credit hours completed up to (~~twenty-eight~~) 28 continuing education credit hours unless they are issued these continuing education credit hours by a state approved in-service education agency.

(b) Individuals who complete the course work for the English language learner subject matter certificate as described in chapter 179-13 WAC are eligible for the number of continuing education credit hours completed up to (~~twenty~~) 20 continuing education credit hours unless they are issued these continuing education credit hours by a state approved in-service education agency.

(c) Individuals who complete the course work for the special education subject matter certificate as described in chapter 179-15 WAC are eligible for the number of continuing education credit hours completed up to (~~twenty~~) 20 continuing education credit hours unless they are issued these continuing education credit hours by a state approved in-service education agency.

(12) Government-to-government relationships with federally recognized tribes. Individuals who complete the professional learning on government-to-government relationships with federally recognized tribes as described under WAC 181-79A-244 are eligible for the number of continuing education credit hours completed up to five continuing education credit hours every five years unless they are issued these continuing education credit hours by a state approved in-service education agency.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 21-15-085, § 181-85-033, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21; WSR 20-19-023, § 181-85-033, filed 9/4/20, effective 10/5/20. Statutory Authority: Chapters 28A.410 and 28A.413 RCW. WSR 19-15-111, § 181-85-033, filed 7/22/19, effective 8/22/19. Statutory Authority: RCW 28A.410.220. WSR 18-17-015, § 181-85-033, filed 8/2/18, effective 9/2/18. Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 16-24-024, § 181-85-033, filed 11/29/16, effective 12/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 28A.410.210. WSR 12-17-039, § 181-85-033, filed 8/7/12, effective 9/7/12; WSR 12-04-031, § 181-85-033, filed 1/26/12, effective 2/26/12; WSR 11-04-048, § 181-85-033, filed 1/25/11, effective 2/25/11; WSR 10-20-079, § 181-85-033, filed 9/29/10, effective 10/30/10; WSR 08-03-101, § 181-85-033, filed 1/20/08, effective 2/20/08; WSR 06-14-010, § 181-85-033, filed 6/22/06, effective 7/23/06. WSR 06-02-051, recodified as § 181-85-033, filed 12/29/05, effective 1/1/06. Statutory Authority: RCW 28A.410.010. WSR 05-19-104, §

180-85-033, filed 9/20/05, effective 10/21/05; WSR 04-20-094, §
180-85-033, filed 10/5/04, effective 11/5/04; WSR 02-18-050, §
180-85-033, filed 8/28/02, effective 9/28/02.]

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-15-085, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21)

WAC 181-85-202 Content standards for continuing education credit hours. The content and objectives of in-service continuing education credit hours must relate to one or more of the following:

- (1) Professional role standards under WAC 181-85-203;
- (2) Paraeducator standards of practice under chapter 179-07 WAC;
- (3) Cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under ~~((RCW 28A.410.260. Until the CCDEI standards are adopted by the board, the content must relate to the cultural competency standards published by the board))~~ WAC 181-85-204; or
- (4) Social emotional learning standards, benchmarks, and indicators under RCW 28A.410.270.

[Statutory Authority: Chapter 28A.410 RCW. WSR 21-15-085, § 181-85-202, filed 7/16/21, effective 8/16/21. Statutory Authority: Chapters 28A.410 and 28A.413 RCW. WSR 19-15-143, § 181-85-202, filed 7/24/19, effective 8/24/19.]

NEW SECTION

WAC 181-85-204 Cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion standards. The cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (CCDEI) standards under RCW 28A.410.260 are as adopted and published by the professional educator standards board.

[]